
 

 

 

   
 
 
 

 

EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF THE  
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 
 
DATE: TUESDAY, 20 AUGUST 2013  
TIME: 5:30 pm 
PLACE: The Oak Room, Ground Floor, Town Hall, Town Hall 

Square, Leicester. LE1 9BG 
 
 
 
Members of the Committee 
 
Councillor Cutkelvin (Chair) 
Councillor Gugnani (Vice Chair) 
 
Councillors Bhatti, Cleaver, Corrall, Desai, Grant and Naylor 
 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed overleaf. 
 
 
 
 
 
For Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 

 
Officer contacts: 

Mike Keen (Democratic Support Officer): 
Tel: 0116 2298817, e-mail: Mike.Keen@leicester.gov.uk  

Kalvaran Sandhu (Members Support Officer): 
Tel: 0116 2298824, e-mail: Kalvaran.Sandhu@leicester.gov.uk  

Leicester City Council, Town Hall, Town Hall Square, Leicester LE1 9BG 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND MEETINGS 
You have the right to attend Cabinet to hear decisions being made.  You can also 
attend Committees, as well as meetings of the full Council.  Tweeting in formal 
Council meetings is fine as long as it does not disrupt the meeting.  There are 
procedures for you to ask questions and make representations to Scrutiny 
Commissions, Community Meetings and Council.  Please contact Democratic 
Support, as detailed below for further guidance on this. 
 
There are procedures for you to ask questions and make representations to Scrutiny 
Committees, Community Meetings and Council.  Please contact Democratic 
Support, as detailed below, for further guidance on this. 
 
You also have the right to see copies of agendas and minutes. Agendas and minutes 
are available on the Council’s website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by 
contacting us as detailed below. 
 
Dates of meetings are available at the Customer Service Centre, King Street, Town 
Hall Reception and on the Website.  
 
There are certain occasions when the Council's meetings may need to discuss 
issues in private session.  The reasons for dealing with matters in private session are 
set down in law. 
 
WHEELCHAIR ACCESS 
Meetings are held at the Town Hall.  The Meeting rooms are all accessible to 
wheelchair users.  Wheelchair access to the Town Hall is from Horsefair Street 
(Take the lift to the ground floor and go straight ahead to main reception). 
 
BRAILLE/AUDIO TAPE/TRANSLATION 
If there are any particular reports that you would like translating or providing on audio 
tape, the Democratic Services Officer can organise this for you (production times will 
depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
INDUCTION LOOPS 
There are induction loop facilities in meeting rooms.  Please speak to the Democratic 
Services Officer at the meeting if you wish to use this facility or contact them as 
detailed below. 
 
General Enquiries - if you have any queries about any of the above or the 
business to be discussed, please contact Mike Keen, Democratic Support on 
(0116) 229 8817 or email Mike.Keen@leicester.gov.uk or call in at the Town 
Hall. 
 
Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 252 6081 



 

 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to 
be discussed. 
  
 

3. PETITIONS  
 

 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any petitions received in 
accordance with Council procedures.  
 

4. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, STATEMENTS OF 
CASE  

 

 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any questions, 
representations or statements of case, received in accordance with Council 
procedures.  
 

5. COMMUNITY SERVICES CHARGING SCHEME  
 

Appendix A 

 The Director of Neighbourhood Services presents a report that sets out 
information regarding the response to the new charging scheme for the 
Council’s community centres. 
 
The Scrutiny Commission is asked to note and to provide comments on the 
information provided and the responses received regarding the proposal to 
introduce a new charging scheme from 1st September 2013.  
 

6. CUSTOMER SERVICES CENTRE RELOCATION  
 

Appendix B 

 The Director Information and Customer Access presents a report that briefs the 
Scrutiny Commission on the move of the Customer Service Centre from New 
Walk Centre as well as the move of the Revenue and Benefits front of house 
service from Wellington House. 
 
Officers will be present at the meeting to respond to questions raised.  
 

7. CITY WARDEN SERVICE  
 

Appendix C 

 The Director Environmental and Enforcement Services presents a report, to be 
supplemented by a presentation, summarising the changes to the City Warden 
Service following a review recently undertaken. 



 

 

 
The views of the Scrutiny Commission are sought on the future working 
arrangements and priorities for the City Warden Service.  
 

8. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 



 

 



This page is left blank intentionally.



August 2013   1 

 
Neighbourhood Services & 
Community Involvement 

Scrutiny Commission Report 
 

 

 

Community Services Charging Scheme 
 

Assistant City Mayor, Councillor Sarah Russell 

Lead director: Liz Blyth 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Appendix A



August 2013   2 

Useful information 
n Ward(s) affected: All wards 

n Report author: Shilen Pattni 

n Author contact details: 29 6564 

n Report version number: 1 

 
 

1. Summary 
 
The purpose of this report is to present the Neighbourhood Services Scrutiny 
Commission with information regarding the response to the new charging scheme for 
the Council’s community centres.  This briefing follows on from an earlier report 
presented to the Commission on 4 June 2013 outlining the options following a review 
of the current charging scheme in operation across the Council’s community centres.  
This earlier report outlined the adoption of a new simplified scheme to be introduced 
and applied in all Council community centres from 1st September 2013. 
 

 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
The Neighbourhood Services Scrutiny Commission is asked to note and provide 
comments on the information and response received regarding the proposal to 
introduce a new charging scheme from 1st September 2013. 
 
 

 
 

3. Background:  
 
The report presented to the Neighbourhood Services and Community Involvement 
Scrutiny Commission on 4th June 2013 outlined the options considered by the City 
Mayor and Executive for the adoption of a new simplified charging scheme for 
community centres. 
 
This report outlined the proposal to revise the existing and complex scheme which 
contained 96 different rates of charge and replace it with a more streamlined and 
simple scheme with only 16 different rates dependent on use. 

          

 
Principles of the new proposed Fees and Charges scheme 
 
When developing a proposal for a simplified scheme consideration was given to the 
types of use and as a result the new scheme set out four bands which are aligned as 
closely as possible to existing rates to avoid disruption.  The overall aim of the new 
scheme is to simplify and streamline charges and to avoid misinterpretation.   
 
The objective of the new scheme is to ensure charges remain affordable, realistic, cost 
effective and fair and to do this usage has been categorised within bands as described 
below.  The new scheme has been developed to be broadly comparable against 
existing rates to seek to ensure that it actively encourages voluntary and community 
groups to use community centres: 
 
 



August 2013   3 

1 Standard Rate – This rate would apply to Leicester based businesses and 
residents for private hire.  This rate also applies to Leicester based public 
sector partners who are either supported by budgets for provision of services 
or have the opportunity to draw down external funding.  This type of charge 
has traditionally always been higher due to the nature of use. It is important 
to ensure that charges for facilities opening outside of normal core hours, for 
one off private hire, are set at a realistic price.  This takes into account the 
true running costs of the facility, particularly increased staffing costs. 
 

2 Community Rate - Community Groups - Fees for this group have been kept 
as low as possible.   
 

3 Instructor Rate - Funded voluntary/community groups, activities charging 
for instruction and those clubs and groups charging local people fees for 
instruction, would be charged at a higher rate than the Community rate. 

 
4 Commercial Rate – Other individuals, groups and organisations based 
outside Leicester.  These charges are set at a commercial rate to ensure that 
a reasonable cost is recovered from commercial organisations. 

 

Band Facility   
Standard 
Rate 

Community 
Group Rate 
(Regular 
Bookings) 

65% Discount 

Instructor 
Rate 

[Regular 
Bookings] 
40% 

Discount 

Commercial 
Rate 

I 
Small Centre/Large 

Hall 
per 
hour 

20.00 7.00 12.00 50.00 

II 
Small Hall/Large 

Room 
per 
hour 

16.00 5.50 9.50 40.00 

III Medium Room 
per 
hour 

12.00 4.00 7.00 30.00 

IV Small Room/Office 
per 
hour 

8.00 3.00 5.00 20.00 

Note: Charges are rounded to the nearest 50p (up or down) 

 
The proposed scheme aims to protect non-commercial community access whilst 
charging for commercial activities at a commercial rate, and broadly maintains the 
status quo for overall income.  
 
Where proposed charges are expected to be higher transitional support is proposed 
over a 7 month period to reduce the immediate financial impact on existing community 
and instructor led groups from 1st September 2013 until 31st March 2014. 
 
Benefits of the proposed scheme 
 
The benefits of the proposed scheme are: 
 

a. A clear and simple charging structure that is easy to understand for 
customers and employees 

b. Fair, equal and consistent rates across community centres 
c. Acknowledgement of the different types of hirer using community facilities 
and appreciation of the important work by local communities. 

d. Recognition of local community volunteers 
e. Advance payment will enable groups to plan their finances and it avoids 
debts to the Council being built up  

f. Enables the ability to develop an online charging facility for room bookings 
similar to booking a hotel room 



August 2013   4 

 
Following consideration by the Scrutiny Commission on 4th June 2013, letters 
(Appendix B) were sent to over 300 groups and organisations who regularly hire 
community facilities. 
 
The table below represents the numbers of groups receiving a reduction or increase in 
hourly charge: 
 
Type of Group Groups paying more, and between: 

 

No of 
groups 

Paying 
less £1.00 £1-£2 £2-3 £3-4 £4-5 >£5 

Cafes and Lunch Clubs 17 2 5 0 5 2 0 3 

Commercial 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 

Community and Social 161 93 45 9 5 4 0 5 

Dance 18 8 2 3 3 2 0 0 

Education and Learning 43 23 10 6 2 2 0 0 

Faith Groups 17 12 2 3 0 0 0 0 

Health, Fitness & Wellbeing 30 13 5 3 6 2 0 1 

Martial Arts  14 5 5 2 1 0 0 1 

Older Peoples activities 7 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 

Young people activities 4 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 

Total 315 161 77 27 24 14 0 12 

Percentage  51% 24% 9% 8% 4% 0% 4% 

 
This breakdown includes groups who have also received discounts for key holding and 
as part of the access control scheme. 
 
The highest level of reduction was £8.40 from a community group moving from an 
existing charge of £15.40 to a new rate of £7.00 per hour. 
 
The highest level of increase was £21.90 from a commercial pharmaceutical company 
moving from an existing charge of £8.10 to a new rate of £30.00. 
  
The table below outline the number of responses received from each centre 
 
 Centre Number of letters 

issued 
Number of responses 
received 

% 
 

1.  African Caribbean Centre 20 1 5% 

2.  Belgrave Neighbourhood Centre 69   

3.  Braunstone Frith Community Centre 4   

4.  Braunstone Grove 2   

5.  Brite Centre 11   

6.  Coleman Neighbourhood Centre 9 8 89% 

7.  Coleman Lodge 12 2 8% 

8.  Cort Crescent Community Centre 4   

9.  Eyres Monsell Community Centre 17 2 12% 

10.  Fosse Centre 8   

11.  Gilmorton Centre 1   

12.  Home Farm Community Centre 5   

13.  Linwood Centre 8 1 13% 

14.  Manor House Neighbourhood Centre 32 1  

15.  Netherhall Neighbourhood Centre 9   

16.  New Parks Neighbourhood Centre 5 1 20% 

17.  Newfoundpool Neighbourhood Centre 9   

18.  Northfields Neighbourhood Centre 5   

19.  Oak Centre 4 3 75% 

20.  Ocean Rd Recreation Centre 6   

21.  Rushey Mead Recreation Centre 5   

22.  Southfields Drive Community Centre 3   

23.  St Matthews Centre (not including sportshall) 13   

24.  Stocking Farm Community Centre 6   

25.  Thurnby Lodge Community Centre 19   

26.  Tudor Centre 6   

27.  West End Neighbourhood Centre 23   

 Total 315 19 6% 

 
 
 
 
 



August 2013   5 

 
The table below shows the number of responses received by the different types of 
hirer: 
 
Type of Group Number of letters issued Number of responses received % 

 

Cafes and Lunch Clubs 17 2 6% 

Commercial 4 2 25% 

Community and Social 161 7 1% 

Dance 18 1 6% 

Education and Learning 43 2 5% 

Faith Groups 17 2 12% 

Health, Fitness & Wellbeing 30 1 3% 

Martial Arts  14  0% 

Older Peoples activities 7 2 29% 

Young people activities 4  0% 

Total 315 19 4% 

 
 
Summary of comments: 
 
From the responses received to date, those groups who will see a reduction have 
welcomed the change.  Some groups who had anticipated an increase indicated they 
were surprised and pleased with the new level of charge.  The table below outlines the 
responses the Council has received from each centre: 
 

African Caribbean Centre 

One response has been received to date expressing concern that the group has 
received subsidised and free use of the centre for over 25 years.  The group meet on 
a weekly basis and travel from across the city.  They collect money weekly to pay for 
keep-fit and other activity tutors.  The group feel “to pay £1.80 per hour for room hire 
is unreasonable to ask for”. 

 

Coleman Neighbourhood Centre 

Eight responses have been received mainly from groups receiving a reduction.  
Three groups who would see small increases had anticipated a change would be 
coming.  All groups accepted the change, one stated “it’s not too bad, not as I 
expected”.  Another group also mentioned “as the number is gradually dwindling we 
may not be running for many more months”, they continue to mention that “they 
appreciate the Council supporting their senior citizens group…”. 

 

Coleman Lodge Community Centre 

Two responses received to date from Language classes both of which request the 
Council to consider reclassifying the group’s activities in order to receive a more 
favourable rate, the group states “I fully understand the current climate and your 
need to review rates, therefore I would like to apply for our group sessions to be 
considered for the Community Group rate, rather than being over charged at the 
current Instructor Rate”.  The response also contained an unverified petition from 24 
parents of attendees. 

 

Eyres Monsell Community Centre 

Two responses have been received to date, the first expresses concern over some 
of the increases to be brought in “one of our largest groups and ‘earners’ (i.e income 
to the centre) at the centre will have to move to other premises.  This will almost 
certainly be the end of the newly negotiated Drama group”.  Another response seeks 
reconsideration of the charge based on the type of activity being delivered through 
volunteers. 

 
 



August 2013   6 

Linwood Centre 

One response received to date, indicated a “feeling that is wrong to be charged to 
use their own community centre when currently revenue is being collected for rent 
from office space to organisations that have allocated revenue funds in their 
budgets.”  It is felt that charging the community will have a negative impact on 
encouraging more use of the centre.  The group also states that “community groups 
have no unallocated revenue funds in which to pay rent as all funds are either 
allocated to tutor costs or funding to deliver specific projects only”.  The group also 
suggested that “there is unused space in the Linwood building that is not being 
rented out and could be in the future to bring in extra revenue funds without charging 
local community groups.” 

 

Manor House Neighbourhood Centre 

One response has been received to date, the group feel that given the substantial 
amount of voluntary time given to developing the centre and operating the facility 
consideration should be given to the value of this.  “We feel we give a great deal of 
time, for free, and this should be matched by the LA”.  The response continues to 
thank the Council for the support the group has received and on a more general 
point state “we are pleased that you have simplified the charging structure.  You 
have given a great deal of time to ensure the increases are brought in slowly, over 
time.  This is helpful.  Some of our groups that are key holders will pay slightly less.  
Only a small number of our groups with few users may struggle to pay their new 
rates”.  The group also acknowledged the move to advance payments “we welcome 
the opportunity for cash payments to be taken in advance or on the day. This is 
helpful”. 

 

New Parks Community Centre 

One response received to date from a group seeking reclassification due to the 
nature of their activities and the type of organisation.  This will be considered subject 
to further information from the group to determine whether the current classification 
is correct or should be changed. 

 

Braunstone Oak Community Centre 

Three responses received to date, one group accepted the small increase of 10p.  
The other two responses from dance groups are seeking reconsideration on the type 
of organisation “people working in their sessions were volunteers” and they “relied on 
bigger numbers in the winter to help pay toward the cost of the centre in summer 
when numbers were low”.  One group suggested their “instructor was not paid a 
professional fee only a small amount in recognition of the work she did with young 
people”  Both groups would receive an overall increase of £2.70 per hour each after 
transitional support ended in March 2014 which is deemed correct based on the 
current classification. 

 
In conclusion the responses received have been reviewed and carefully considered. It 
has been acknowledged that the scheme is a lot more simple and easy to understand, 
and with an appreciation of the need to ensure that charges are fair and consistent.  
Where groups have requested a reclassification consideration will be given on a case 
by case basis, to ensure that the scheme is applied consistently across the city.  As 
outlined in the previous report the new charges are set to be implemented on 1st 
September with transitional support over seven months, until March 2014, to reduce 
the immediate financial impact. 
 
 

 
 



August 2013   7 

 
4. Details of Scrutiny 
 

 
The issues in this report were originally considered by the Neighbourhood Services 
Scrutiny Commission on 4th June 2013 
 

 
5. Financial, legal and other implications 
 
5.1 Financial implications 
 

 
This report considers options for the design and implementation of a new charging 
scheme for public and other external use of community centres. The move to simplify 
and standardise charges across the estate is welcome. The Executive will wish to 
consider whether the broad aim of maintaining income at current levels, together with 
the proposals for transitional support, are appropriate and sustainable in the context of 
the challenging financial pressures upon the Council over the coming years. 
 
Colin Sharpe, Head of Finance, City Development and Neighbourhoods, ext. 29 7390 

 

 
 
5.2 Legal implications  
 

 
Advice has been provided to the Report author on: the Council’s equality obligations 
concerning the existing groups that are described in this Report and new groups; and 
means to assess the potential for any unintended disadvantage to new groups. 
General advice has also been provided to the Report author on consultation 
obligations. 
 
Greg Surtees, Senior Solicitor.  Ext: 296453 

 
5.3 Equality Impact Assessment  
 

 
An EIA was conducted which did not highlight any significant impact across any 
protected characteristic. The impacts identified were both negative and positive 
dependent on whether groups received an increase or reduction in charge. In is felt 
that in considering the overall impact the new scheme has maintained its key principles 
to provide fairness, consistency and subsidy of non-commercial hire,  evidenced by the 
analysis of over 50% of groups receiving a reduction, while applying a fairer charge for 
commercial activities. 
 

 
 
5.4 Other Implications (You will need to have considered other implications in preparing this 
report.  Please indicate which ones apply?) 
 

 
None. 

 

6.  Background information and other papers:  



August 2013   8 

None 

 

7. Summary of appendices:  

Appendix A – EIA 

Appendix B – Letter to hirers 

 

8.  Is this a private report (If so, please indicated the reasons and state why it is not in the 
public interest to be dealt with publicly)?  

No 

 

9.  Is this a “key decision”?   

No 



August 2013   9 

APPENDIX A 

 

 
Equality Impact Assessment for  

Service changes / Budget proposals   
 
An EIA is a tool which will help you assess whether there are any positive or negative equality 
impacts on people affected by proposed changes requiring formal decision.  
 
Service change involves redesigning or reshaping, (and in some cases the removal of) current 
service provision – whether directly provided by Council officers or commissioned by the Council 
for provision by an external provider. 
 
Budget proposals should arise from service changes that you are considering throughout the 
year in light of the current financial climate. The EIA for budget proposals should cover the same 
issues as considered for service changes. 
 
Our public sector equality duty requires us to ensure that we do not discriminate against any 
protected group or person with protected characteristics (see below) covered by the Equality Act 
2010 when taking decisions that affect them. Potential negative impacts that we disregard or 
ignore could mean discrimination. We also have a duty to actively promote positive impacts that 
advance equality of opportunity. The protected characteristics covered by the Equality Act 2010 
are:  

 

• Age 

• Disability  

• Gender reassignment  

• Pregnancy and maternity  

• Race 

• Religion or belief 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation.  
 

      
What to do: The service change / budget proposal EIA contains 3 steps: 
 
Step 1      The proposal   
This part of the EIA examines the proposed change to the service and potential equality 
impacts takes place at the start of the planning process.  
 
Step 2      Consultation    
This part of the EIA covers the outcome of the consultation with service stakeholders about 
service change proposals.   

 
Step 3     The recommendation  
The final part of the EIA presents the recommendation for decision along with potential 
positive and negative equality impacts of the recommended action.  
 
Any issues identified in the above EIA process requiring action should be addressed in 
a SMART EIA action plan.  
 
Remember to keep your supporting information and analysis as your evidence base 
(including any needs assessments informing the start of the planning process) in case 



August 2013   10 

of challenge to the contents of your EIA, your interpretation of the evidence used to 
support the EIA, or your interpretation of protected groups affected.  



August 2013   11 

Equality Impact Assessment for service changes / budget proposals   
 

 

Name of service Community Services 
 

 
Date of assessment:  

Start date Completion date 

04-04-2013 _ _ - _ _ - _ _ _ _ 

 

Lead officer and 
Contact details 

Shilen Pattni 
296564 

List of other(s) 
involved 

Steve Goddard 
Liz Blyth 
 

 
What is this EIA about?  

 (Please ticküüüü) 

Budget proposal for existing service or service contract to achieve savings 
 

 

Budget proposal for new or additional service expenditure 
 

 

Budget proposal for capital expenditure   
 

 

Commissioning a new service or service contract 
 

 

Changing or removing an existing service or service contract 
 üüüü 

 

Step 1: The proposal (how you propose to change the service)  
 
Question 1:  

What is the proposal/proposed change?  

 
 

a. Introducing the new scheme from 1st September 2013, providing a 65% discount 
for community groups and 40% discount for instructor led activities from the 
proposed new standard rate.   
 

b. Where revised charges are expected to be higher than existing charges for 
existing groups hiring space in community centres, to provide transitional support 
over a seven month period. 

 

Who will it affect and how will they likely be affected? 

 
This will affect a range of existing groups who hire community facilities.  Based on a 
snapshot at a specific period in time analysis showed that from an extract of 347 groups, 96 
groups would see their charge reduced and 251 would see charges increase by varying 
amounts. 
 
The proposed scheme attempts to drive out the inequality of the existing charging scheme 
which has built up over time and a historical application of the scheme.  Overall the proposed 



August 2013   12 

scheme attempts to apply a fair, consistent and reasonable charge for the use of community 
centres across the city which would not have an adverse impact on new communities and 
groups.  
 
While transitional support will be provided to existing groups to bring them in line with the 
proposed scheme it is not felt that this approach is disadvantageous to new 
groups/communities given that the overall aim is to address the inequality of charging across 
the city. 

 
Question 2:  

Will the proposal have an impact on people because of their protected characteristic? 
Tick the anticipated impact for those likely to be affected by protected characteristic.  

 

 No impact Positive 
impact 

Neutral 
impact1 

Negative 
impact  

Impact not 
known  

Age  üüüü  üüüü  

Disability   üüüü  üüüü  

Gender 
reassignment  

 üüüü  üüüü  

Pregnancy and 
maternity  

 üüüü  üüüü  

Race  üüüü  üüüü  

Religion or 
belief 

 üüüü  üüüü  

Sex (gender)  üüüü  üüüü  

Sexual 
orientation  

 üüüü  üüüü  

 
Question 3: 

For those likely to receive a positive impact, describe the likely positive impact for 
each group sharing a protected characteristic. How many people are likely to be 
affected?  
 

From the range of 347 groups – 96 groups would receive a positive impact by way of a 
reduction in the hire charge. 
 

 
Question 4: 

For those likely to receive a neutral impact, describe the likely impacts (both positive 
and negative) for each group sharing a protected characteristic and how they result in 
a neutral finding. How many people are likely to be affected?   

n/a 

 
Question 5: 

For those likely to receive a negative impact, describe the likely negative impact for 
each group sharing a protected characteristic. How many people are likely to be 
affected?  

From the range of 347 groups – 251groups would receive a negative impact by way of 
an increase in the hire charge to varying amounts dependent on the nature and room 
hired.  This is likely to see some groups facing difficulties in immediately meeting the 
increase rates. 

                                            
1
 Where likely positive impacts combined with likely negative impacts leave the person no better or worse off 



August 2013   13 

 

How can these negative impacts be reduced or removed?  

It is intended that these impacts are reduced by providing transitional support introducing the 
new rate over a period of seven months and also providing support on a case by case basis 
to identify alternative sources of funding to support a group’s activities. 
 

 
Question 6: 

Is there other alternative or comparable provision available in the city? Who provides 
it and where is it provided?  

There are a range of alternative providers for hireable space across the city.  Given that the 
rates for community and instructor led activities remain significantly subsidised by the 
Council it is clear that Council run community facilities are more cost effective. 
 
The table below provides an outline comparison of charges for alternative venue against the 
proposed scheme: 
 

 Average Charge per hour 

Community Groups, local voluntary 

organisations 

Proposed 

Community Group 

Rate 

65% Discount 

Community 

Services Existing 

Braunstone 

Civic Centre 

Leicestershire 

County Libraries 

Clarence House County 

Schools 

(Brockington 

College) 

Leicester Schools 

Schedule of rates 

Halls 7.00 8.20 11.95 - 12.50 13.50 16.83 

        

Meeting Rooms 4.00 5.40 4.76 6.25 7.10 11.00 4.34 

        

Consulting/Interview Rooms 3.00 3.50 4.76 6.25 5.00 11.00 4.34 

  

 Average Charge per hour 

Instructor led activities (fee charged) Proposed Instructor 

rate 

40% Discount 

Community 

Services Existing 

Braunstone 

Civic Centre 

Leicestershire 

County Libraries 

Clarence House County Schools 

(Brockington 

College) 

Leicester Schools 

Schedule of rates 

Halls 12.00 13.10 11.95 - 12.50 13.50 16.83 

        

Meeting Rooms 7.00 9.60 4.76 6.25 7.10 11.00 4.34 

        

Consulting/Interview Rooms 5.00 6.20 4.76 6.25 5.00 11.00 4.34 

 

 Average Charge per hour 

Private and Commercial Braunstone 

Civic Centre 

Leicester 

Schools 

Schedule of 

rates 

Proposed 

Standard Rate 

Existing 

Private 

Bookings 

Rate 

Clarence 

House 

County 

Schools 

(Brockington 

College) 

Leicestershire 

County 

Libraries 

Existing 

Commercial 

Rate 

Proposed 

Commercial 

Rate 

Halls 13.95 16.83 20.00 23.20 29.17 26.50 - 38.20 50.00 

          

Meeting Rooms 5.50 4.34 12.00 15.10 12.30 13.50 16.25 25.00 30.00 

          

Consulting/Interview Rooms 5.50 - 8.00 9.60 10.00 - 16.25 15.60 20.00 

  
 
 

Can this alternative or comparable provision reduce or remove the negative impacts 
identified in Question 5? If not, why not? 

Based on the information above it is not likely that alternative venues will reduce or remove 
the negative impact as they appear more expensive. 
 

Would service users negatively affected by the proposal be eligible to use this 
alternative or comparable provision, and would it meet the service users’ identified 
needs?  

Alternative provision would be on the basis of identifying and hiring alternative community 
facilities that are outside of Council control (Private venues) which are also likely to levy a 
charge to service users. 

 
 
 
 



August 2013   14 

Question 7: 

Will any particular area of the city be positively or negatively affected by the proposal, 
compared to other parts of the city? Describe where this is likely to take place, and 
why.  

The range of 347 groups are spread across the city 
 

 
Question 8: 

Is it likely that there may be additional negative impacts arising over the next three 
years that need to be considered? Describe any additional negative impacts over time 
that could realistically occur.  

No additional impacts have been identified. 
 

 
Question 9:  

What data/information/analysis have you used to inform your equality impact 
findings?  

Information and date extracted from gathering information about the usage and hire of 
community centres at a specific point in time. 
 

 

Date completed …4 April 2013………………………………………….. 
 

Step 2: Consultation on the final proposal  
 
Question1: 

What consultation on the final proposal has taken place?  
When, where and who with?  

A total of 315 groups were written to formally to indicate the impact on their specific case, 
following which discussions would take place to determine any further impact and if any 
further support is required which will be determined on an individual case basis. 
 

 
Question 2: 

What potential impacts did consultation stakeholders identify? 

The majority of groups who responded accepted the rationale for the change and had 
anticipated that there would be an impact.  Some groups indicated that the change was not 
as much as expected and were able to absorb the impact. Some groups did not accept the 
classification for their group and type of activity for which consideration is being given on a 
case by case basis.  

What positive impacts were identified? For people with which protected 
characteristics?  

Groups have indicated that the new scheme is simple and easy to understand 

What negative impacts were identified? For people with which protected 
characteristics? 

Some groups have indicated difficulty as numbers are currently reducing for their group.  It 
was accepted that transitional support would help and further assistance would be provided 
in promoting activities. 
 

 
Question 3: 

Did stakeholders indicate how positive impacts could be further promoted? How?  

To publicise the new charges wider. 



August 2013   15 

Did stakeholders indicate how negative impacts could be reduced or removed? How?  

No additional measures were put forward, however consideration is being given on a case 
by case basis to how the scheme applies to specific groups. 

 
Date completed      ……31-7-13…………………………………….. 
 
 

Step 3: The recommendation (the recommended decision on how to       
change the service) 

 
Question 1: 

What changes are being recommended? 

 
a. Introducing the new scheme from 1st September 2013, providing a 65% discount 
for community groups and 40% discount for instructor led activities from the 
proposed new standard rate.   
 

b. Where revised charges are expected to be higher than existing charges for 
existing groups hiring space in community centres, to provide transitional support 
over a seven month period. 

 
 

Who will be affected by these changes?  

 
This will affect a range of existing groups who hire community facilities.  315 groups were 
written to, with 161 groups paying less and 154 with charges increase by varying amounts. 
 
The proposed scheme attempts to drive out the inequality of the existing charging scheme 
which has built up over time and a historical application of the scheme.  Overall the proposed 
scheme attempts to apply a fair, consistent and reasonable charge for the use of community 
centres across the city which would not have an adverse impact on new communities and 
groups.  
 
While transitional support will be provided to existing groups to bring them in line with the 
proposed scheme it is not felt that this approach is disadvantageous to new 
groups/communities.   As with the existing scheme the new scheme also provides for 
temporary development concessions which would be provided to groups on a case by case 
basis.   
 

 
 
Question 2: 

 What is the anticipated impact of these changes on people who share the following 
protected characteristics? Tick the anticipated impact below:  

 

 No impact Positive 
impact 

Neutral 
impact2 

Negative 
impact  

Impact not 
known  

Age  üüüü  üüüü  

Disability   üüüü  üüüü  

Gender 
reassignment  

 üüüü  üüüü  

                                            
2
 Where likely positive impacts combined with likely negative impacts leave the person no better or worse off 



August 2013   16 

 No impact Positive 
impact 

Neutral 
impact2 

Negative 
impact  

Impact not 
known  

Pregnancy and 
maternity  

 üüüü  üüüü  

Race  üüüü  üüüü  

Religion or 
belief 

 üüüü  üüüü  

Sex (gender)  üüüü  üüüü  

Sexual 
orientation  

 üüüü  üüüü  

 
Question 3: 

For those likely to receive a positive impact, describe the likely positive impact for 
each group sharing a protected characteristic. How many people are likely to be 
affected?  

A total of 161 groups are likely to receive a reduction in charge. 
 
The Council has established partnership agreements with Community Associations and 
other local stakeholder groups who are interested in the development of their local facilities.  
In the spirit of this partnership it has been agreed that the partnering organisation shall 
receive 50% of the income generated through the development of new activities by the 
group.  This income is shared to enable the group to build its financial capacity and reinvest 
in the development of the facility and provision of activities. 

Question 4: 

For those likely to receive a neutral impact, describe the likely impacts (both positive 
and negative) for each group sharing a protected characteristic and how they result in 
a neutral finding. How many people are likely to be affected?   

 

 
Question 5: 

For those likely to receive a negative impact, describe the likely negative impact for 
each group sharing a protected characteristic. How many people are likely to be 
affected?  

154 groups are expected to receive an increase in charge for use of community centres at 
varying levels from £0.10 over £5.00 per hour. 
 

How can these negative impacts be reduced or removed?  

The impact of this change will be reduced by providing transitional support over a seven 
month period. 
The Council has established partnership agreements with Community Associations and 
other local stakeholder groups who are interested in the development of their local facilities.  
In the spirit of this partnership it has been agreed that the partnering organisation shall 
receive 50% of the income generated through the development of new activities by the 
group.  This income is shared to enable the group to build its financial capacity and reinvest 
in the development of the facility and provision of activities. 

 
Question 6: 

Are there any actions required as a result of this EIA?  
If yes complete the EIA Action Plan on the next page. List up to 3 priority actions. 

 

Date completed …5-8-13………………………………………….. 
 

This EIA has been completed by: 



August 2013   17 

 

Lead officer (signature) 

 
Date 05-08-2013 

 
The EIA has been signed off by the Equality Officer:  

Equality officer (signature) 

 
Date 5-8-2013 

 
This EIA has been signed off by the Divisional Director:  

Divisional Director (signature) Liz  Blyth 

Date 12-08-13 

 



  

 

EIA Action Plan 
 
Please list all the equality objectives, actions and targets that result from the Equality 
Impact Assessment. These should be included in the relevant service plan for 
performance management purposes.  
 

 
Equality 
Objective  

 
Action required  

 
Target  

 
Officer 
responsible  

 
By when?  

 
Example: To 
know equality 
profile of all 
service users. 

 
Example: collect 
monitoring data 
on disabled users 
(currently not 
being provided) 
 

 
Example: To 
have data for first 
performance 
review 

 
Example: Joe 
Smith 

 
Example: 
Start 
collection of 
data in April 
10  

Try to address 
the negative 
impacts above 
 

Work with groups 
to promote 
activities or find 
alternative 
funding sources 
to support the 
groups’ activities. 
 

Groups securing 
alternative 
funding 
 
 

Shilen Pattni 31 March 
2014 

 
 
 

Work with groups 
to look at the 
feasibility of 
reorganising 
session times to 
minimise costs 

Groups able to 
reorganise 
session times to 
share and reduce 
costs. 

Shilen Pattni 31 March 
2014 

 

What to do next?  
If this EIA has identified any issues that need to be addressed (such as plugging a data 
gap, or carrying out a specific action that reduces or removes any negative impacts 
identified), complete the attached EIA Action Plan to set out  what action is required, who 
will carry it out, and when it will be carried out/completed.  
Once your EIA has been completed, (signed by the equalities officer and countersigned 
by your Director) the equality officer will work with you to monitor this action plan.  
 
Equality officers: Sonya Osborne 29 7738  Sukhi Biring 29 6954 
EIAs will be made widely available and published on the Councils website and intranet.   
  



 

 

 

 

19 

 
APPENDIX B – LETTERS TO SERVICE USERS  
 

Please ask for:      
Direct Line:   
E-Mail:   
Fax No:   
 
   
Date:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear XXX 
 
I am writing to let you know about new charges that the council proposes to implement in 
all its community centres from 1st September 2013.  This letter tells you about the impact 
on your group and we would like your comments as a valued customer of council 
facilities. 
 
Why are we changing the scheme? 
 
The existing scheme of charges has been in operation for over 20 years. It is overly 
complicated and out of date, and not applied consistently in some facilities because of 
historical patterns of use.  
 
About the new scheme 
 

• The proposed scheme aims to ensure that charges for community centres 
operated by the council are affordable, realistic, cost effective and fair to all 
customers. Charges should reflect the type of use and the time the building is 
used. 

• It is designed to be broadly comparable with existing rates to encourage 
voluntary and community groups to use community centres. 

• It introduces a clear and simple charging structure that is easy for customers 
and staff to understand. 

• The scheme acknowledges the different types of hirer using community facilities 
and the important work carried out by local communities. 

• It recognises local community volunteers and the valuable service they provide. 

• Under the new scheme, you will need to pay for room hire in advance, which will 
enable groups to plan their finances more effectively. Groups will be able to pay 
by cash or credit/debit card. 
 

Please find enclosed a copy of the new scheme.   
 
 



 

 

 

 

20 

After reviewing the nature of your activity and the type of room(s) you hire, we have 
calculated that your [org/community grp/service] will [be required to pay/receive] a/an 
£00.00 [increase /reduction] in charges.  This will bring your new hourly rate to £00.00 
p/h, which has been calculated as follows: 
 
 
Existing scheme 
 

Room hired: Cost per hour 

  

  

Total  

 
New scheme: Type of use: Community Group, Instructor, Standard, Commercial 
 

Room hired(Room designation: Small hall, large room, etc.) Cost per hour 

  

  

Total  

 
We anticipate that some groups may need support to meet the new charges. After 
careful consideration, we are proposing to phase in the increase for your group over 
seven months from September 2013 until March 2014 – see the table below: 
 

Current Charge 
from 
1st April 2013 

Charge from 
1st September 
2013 

Charge from  
1st January 2014 

Charge from  
1st April 2014 

    

 
 
We want to hear your views and comments.  
 
You can talk to the managers of our community centres, who will also be able to answer 
any questions that you may have.   
 
Alternatively we would welcome your views and comments on the new scheme in 
writing: use the address at the top of this letter or email 
communityservices@leicester.gov.uk.  To ensure your comments are properly 
considered, please write to us by Friday 26th July 2013. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 



1 

 

Report to Scrutiny Commission 
  

Neighbourhood Services and Community 
Involvement Scrutiny Commission 

Date of Commission meeting: 20th August 2013 

 

 

Customer Service Centre Relocation 

 

Assistant City Mayor, Councillor Sarah Russell 

Lead Director: Jill Craig 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

             

Appendix B



2 

 

Useful Information: 
 

 Ward(s) affected:  All 
 Report author:  Jill Craig, Director Information & Customer Access 
 Author contact details 0116 252 7407 email: jill.craig@leicester.gov.uk 
 Date of Exec meeting N/A 

 
1. Summary  
 

 
To brief the Neighbourhood Services and Community Involvement Scrutiny 
Commission about the move of the Customer Service Centre from New Walk Centre 
and the Revenue and Benefits front of house service from Wellington House. 
 
It is estimated that there will be around 145,000 customer visits per annum to the 
new combined centre which will open in December. 
 

 
 
2. Recommendation(s) to scrutiny  
 

 
The report does not contain any recommendations.  Officers will attend the meeting 
to answer any questions the Scrutiny Commission may have. 
 

 
 
3.  Supporting Information 
 

 
Background 
 

1992 and now handles an average 6,100 enquiries a month.  It is designed as the 
first point of access to all council services and can deal with over 99% of enquiries 
without the customer needing to have any further contact with the council.  The high 
volume enquiries handled within the centre include: 
 

 Licensing  Customers can submit and pay for different types of licences 
e.g.Taxi Driver, Premises Licence, Personal Licence, Skips & Scaffolding, Street 
Trading, Free Distribution of Printed Matter, and Temporary Event Notices. 
 

 Parking Enforcement  Customers can view photographic details of the 
incident, can submit a challenge against the fine and pay outstanding fines. 
 

 Bus Lane Enforcement  Customers can view CCTV footage of the incident, 
submit a challenge and the outstanding fine. 
 

 Concessionary Travel  Customers can make an application for a Senior, 
Disabled or Travel Aid pass which is issued at the time of the visit.  



3 

 

 

 Parking  Customers can purchase a range of permits including, Residents, 
Visitors, Contractors, Business and Maintenance. 
 

 Blue Badge - Customers can submit an application and make payment for an 
automatic or discretionary Blue Badge. 
 

 Housing Benefits  Customers can submit an application and have the required 
supporting documentation verified.  They can also obtain advice regarding an 
existing claim and give details of any change of circumstances. 
 

 Council Tax  Customers are able to inform the Council of any changes to 
occupation/vacation.  Receive advice on discounts, exemptions, recovery action. 
 

 Housing Options  Customers can make applications to be on the Housing 
Register, provide and have supporting documentation verified. 

 
There is a requirement to relocate the New Walk Centre based CSC as part of the 
plan to vacate New Walk Centre as a whole 
 
There has been a long standing ambition to provide a better quality CSC, and in 
particular to combine this facility with the Revenues and Benefits (R&B) face to face 
service currently operated at Wellington House.   
 

 Last year a number of sites were looked at and a decision was taken to relocate the 
CSC, and the R&B face-to-face service to a vacant unit within York House on 
Granby Street (formally Pound Stretcher). 

 The new facility will span two floors, with Housing Benefit enquiries being handled on 
the first floor and all other enquires on the ground floor (Copies of the floor plan and 
visuals of what the interiors will look like are shown at Appendix A.) 
 
Timescales 
 
Work commenced on site in refurbishing the existing unit on the 1st July, and this is 
scheduled to complete in November.  The facility will open to the public in December 
2013. 
 
Opening Times 
 
The opening times of the new building are proposed as being;  
 
 

o Monday   8.30  17.00 
o Tuesday   8.30  17.00 
o Wednesday  9.30  18.00 
o Thursday  8.30  17.00 
o Friday   8.30  16.30 

 
These bring into line the opening times of the existing R&B service and the New 
Walk Centre Customer Service Centre and include a small, but positive change to 



4 

 

Wednesday opening hours.  Currently the service is open 8.30  17.00 on a 
Wednesday.  In future the service will open one hour later in the morning and will 
stay open until 18.00.   
 
Staffing implications 
 
R&B customers are currently signposted to Wellington House although Customer 
Services can also handle a wide range of R&B enquiries, particularly Council Tax.   
 
 Going forward we have agreed that Customer Services staff will be trained to offer 
the full range of Council Tax enquiries.   Housing Benefit enquiries will continue to be 
handled by Housing Benefits team whose front-of-house staff will be located on the 
first floor of the new centre.   
 
 Funding for four CSC posts have transferred from R&B to customer services to deal 
with this additional work. 
 
 There are no other staffing implications. 
 
Service provision, ICT & Benefits 
 
The new centre will bring together the R&B and Customer Service face-to-face 
services into one co-located facility.   
 
 The location is in a more central location with more passing footfall. 
 
The new CSC has more space than the existing arrangements which has allowed us 
to review how customer enquiries are handled.  The existing arrangements can 
sometimes bottle neck around the initial enquiry desk.  And customers waiting with 
quick enquiries can find themselves in a queue behind highly complex issues.  The 
new centre will have a separate transaction desk for quick enquiries and include two 
self-payment kiosks which will allow customers to make payments for a variety of 
services without the need to queue for an advisor 
 
 There will be an automated queuing system which will ensure queuing is handled 
fairly and will allow additional service points to be easily opened up during peak 
demand times. 
 
 There will be eight self-service PCs provided which will allow customers to carry out 
certain transactions without the need for the assistance of an advisor (e.g. viewing 
planning applications) 
 
 There will be a free public wifi service provided which will allow customers to use 
their personal devices to connect to the internet whilst they are at the CSC. 
 
Managing the move 
 
 Refurbishment activity started some weeks ago, but as well as building redecoration 
and fit-out, a project like this involves considerable work to plan how the new 
arrangements will operate and to manage the transition from the existing 
arrangements to the new arrangements with minimal downtime. 



5 

 

 
 Operational issues that need to be considered include: how the new accommodation 
arrangements will operate, particularly over two floors, security; uniform colour; cash 
handling arrangements; new IT including a new queuing system and self-service 
kiosks, and how the centre will communicate with back offices located on other sites.  
Work on all these issues is well in hand. 
 
 The project plan allows three weeks to move into the building after the refurbishment 
work is complete and to introduce the new arrangements to staff.  The current 
working assumption is that the final moves will take place over a weekend and the 
new centre will open on a Monday without any loss of service.  
 
Threat and opportunities 
 
 It is not perceived that there are any significant threats of moving.  The transition will 
be carefully orchestrated and there will be publicity and signage to redirect 
customers to the new building. 
 
 There is an opportunity to use the CSC to promote other facilities (e,g, the Richard III 
exhibition, Visit Leicester) through using the extensive shop front glazed area, and 
this is already being discussed with Corporate Communications and Marketing. 

 
 
 
4. Financial, legal and other implications 
 
4.1 Financial implications 
 

There is provision within the approved Accommodation Strategy capital budget of 
£800,000 for the Customer Services Centre and £1,341,000 for 10 York Road 
making a combined total of £2,141,000. It is expected that these works will be 
completed in the current financial year. 
 

 
4.2 Legal implications  
 

Legal Services are involved with the transactional contracts and property 
agreements to implement the new arrangements 
 
 

 
4.3 Other Implications  
 

 
None 
 

 
 
Appendices: Visuals of the new centre (including floor plans) 
 



6 

 

APPENDIX A  VISUALS  
 
(Please note that some minor detail in these pictures may be different to what is 
ultimately built, as these pictures were produced in the early stages of the design 
process) 
  
1) Ground floor on entry to the building 
 
 

 
 
 
 
2) Ground floor - counter positions towards rear of the building 
 

 
 

 



7 

 

3) First floor counter positions 

 

# 

 

4) An Image of a Self-Payment machine, plus an example of two such machines in-
situ  our machines will not be this colour, but will be set in a similar fashion, with one 
at a lower height for wheelchair users 

 

 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 



8 

 

5) Ground floor layout 

 

 

 
 

 

6) First floor layout (Note: some minor changes to the back office 

arrangements are being discussed.  These changes have not been agreed at 

the time of writing this report). 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 
 



  

 

 
Neighbourhood Services & 

Community Involvement 
Scrutiny Commission Report 

 

 

 

City Warden Service 
 

Assistant City Mayor, Councillor Sarah Russell 

Lead Director: Adrian Russell 

 

20th August 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Appendix C



 

2 
 

Useful information 
n Ward(s) affected: All 

n Report author: Adrian Russell 

n Author contact details: 0116 2527295 

 
 

1. Summary 
 

This report, which will be supplemented by a presentation to the 
Commission, summarises changes to the City Warden Service following a 
review recently undertaken by the Director of Environmental & Enforcement 
Services.  

 
 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

The views of the Commission are sought on the future working arrangements 
and priorities for the City Warden Service. 

 
 

 
 

3. Report:  
 

A review of services within the Environmental & Enforcement Services Division 
was undertaken with the following objectives: 
1. To deliver previously agreed budget savings (£870,000 in 2013/14, rising to 

£955,000 in 2014/15) through management rationalisation. 

2. To adapt the divisional organisational structure to accommodate incoming 

services (Leicester Anti-social Behaviour Unit, the Community Safety Team, 

highways enforcement functions, the parking enforcement service and the 

PCN & Permit Team). 

3. To introduce a new management and organisational structure and new 

ways of working that can improve efficiency, service quality and in 

particular, to ensure better joined-up working between the wide range of 

regulatory and enforcement services within the Division. 

4. To provide a more flexible structure that is better able to respond to 

strategic priorities and future budget pressures. 

5. To ensure that all regulatory and enforcement services can better link into 

the new neighbourhood working arrangements. 

6. To provide improved support to local businesses (especially new start-up 

SMEs) and thereby improve regulatory compliance. 

7. To take advantage of the opportunities arising from co-locating all of these 

services to a new office base. 

 



 

3 
 

 

As an outcome of the review a new model for the council’s regulatory and 
enforcement Services is in the process of being implemented, recognising two 
distinct but complementary types of regulatory/enforcement services: 

• Patrolling Services 

• Specialist Teams 

 
Patrolling Services: The City Warden Service 

 
This service was established with the aim of improving the quality of the local 
environment through education, community engagement and enforcement. 
In particular, City Wardens were empowered to issue fixed penalty notices 
(FPNs) for littering and other new environmental/ASB offences under the Clean 
Neighbourhoods & Environment Act. They were also charged with local 
problem-solving, which often involved working collaboratively with other 
enforcement services across the council, the Police and other agencies. 
 
The service has been broadly successful in working with local communities to 
securing improvements to the local environment and establishing itself as an 
effective and very productive front-line, uniformed, “on the street” 
enforcement service. Having a fairly open remit, this has enabled them to be 
responsive and capable of being flexibly deployed, for example to enforce 
byelaws relating to spitting, to rapidly respond to local issues of concern (e.g. a 
spate of bin/rubbish fires in a small area of the city) or to provide support to 
other services, e.g. Trading Standards undertaking a major raid. The same 
principle applies to non-enforcement work, e.g. the valuable work they 
undertook in 2012 on the day of the EDL march and during the Olympic Torch 
relay, as a uniformed presence able to advise and assist members of the 
public. 
 
However, some of their achievements were limited by their specific remit and 
role. This is perhaps best illustrated by their work within the city centre, where 
they were empowered to tackle littering and other waste-related offences. 
However, other key city centre problems remained the enforcement 
responsibility of other services, e.g. noise from buskers & preachers, street 
trading, A-boards, oil spillages on the granite paving, etc. In these instances, 
City Wardens could only refer these matters to the other relevant service, even 
though these were often fairly straightforward enforcement processes, requiring 
only limited specialist knowledge. 
 
Linked to this was one of the common sources of frustration of City Wardens, 
where a problem was reported to another service within the council, but that 
service failed to respond, for whatever reason; the more distant the other 
service was within the organisational structure of the City Council, the more 
difficult it tended to be to overcome such problems. 
 
 
The aim of the review changes are to build upon the successes of the City 



 

4 
 

Warden Service and develop the service within a new enforcement model, the 
key principles of which will be that City Wardens:  
 
1. Will be the council’s primary front-line, “on the street”, uniformed, 
enforcement service. 

2. Their remit will be extended, to enable them to tackle as many 
straightforward, “on the street” matters and routine neighbourhood 
complaints as possible. 

3. Will continue to be ward-based, with ward councillors, local communities 
and other agencies always have a named warden as their local point of 
contact. They would attend ward community meetings as a matter of 
routine and would act as the key point of contact for all of the Division’s 
enforcement services at these meetings 

4. They will have a direct link into all other specialist enforcement services and will 
be provided with sufficient training to have a sound understanding of the role, 
remit and priorities of those services. 

5. They will actively refer matters to the Council’s specialist enforcement 
services, where appropriate, acting as the “eyes & ears” of other services, 
including the Police, where appropriate. 

6. They will also be responsible for identifying new business premises as soon as 
they open, thereby enabling business regulation and support services to 
engage with new businesses at the earliest opportunity. 

7. They will be regularly briefed by the specialist enforcement services and will 
be capable of being tasked by those services. 

8. A number of highways enforcement duties are being transferred to the 
service, including skip & scaffolding permits (as with pavement café 
licences, the issuing of these permits will be administered by the Licensing 
Team, but would be enforced by City Wardens). Fees have been 
introduced for such permits, so as to generate an income stream that can 
fund this enforcement work through the provision of additional City 
Wardens. 

9. They will be given a wider remit within the city centre, managing street 
activities (buskers, preachers, street traders, etc.) and ensuring that a 
dedicated telephone contact number is available during core trading 
hours. As previously agreed sufficient funding for one additional City Warden 
has been transferred from Noise & Licensing budgets to fund this work. 

10. Tackling rubbish-related problems in local communities will remain a key 
responsibility of City Wardens. As previously has been the case, they will liaise 
closely with Cleansing Area Service Managers in relation to rubbish on 
public land, but responsibility for rubbish on private land (approx. 1,000 
complaints p.a.) will transfer to the City Warden Service, supported by “back 
office” support staff, who will establish land ownership and serve the 
necessary statutory notices and arrange for default works where needed (in 
a far more expedient & efficient manner).  

11. Efforts will be made to maximise the use of Cleansing Services’ Rapid 
Response Team for works in default (i.e. works rechargeable to land 
owners/occupiers) so as to help provide an on-going income stream to 
support that team, which is currently funded on a short-term basis only. 

12. City Wardens (and their support team) will also deal with low-level 



 

5 
 

“eyesores” more proactively using powers under Section 215 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 to tackle land and buildings that adversely 
affect the amenity of the area. They may also be able to undertake some of 
the low-level planning enforcement work, thereby freeing-up the Planning 
Enforcement Team for more complex enforcement work. 

13. One a phased basis over the next 12 months, City Wardens will begin to 
undertake some low-level, community safety work in liaison with the 
Community Safety Team, which has been reduced in size as a 
consequence of previous budget decisions. 

14. There is also scope for extending the remit of City Wardens to deal with 
problems on parks. Recent joint working involving Parks Officers and City 
Wardens proved very effective in tackling geese feeding problems on 
Watermead Park. More recently a dedicated Parks-based City Warden has 
recently been recruited to pilot a new approach to managing behaviour-
related problems on Bede Park. Depending on evaluation of this pilot 
project, there may be scope for retaining and/or recruiting additional Parks-
based City Warden posts. 

15. Consideration is also being given to providing a number of mopeds or 
(electric?) bicycles to City Wardens when working in outer wards, so as to 
improve their productivity and responsiveness. 

 
The Enviro-crime Team is also being embedded within the City Warden Service, 
with this small team effectively becoming a “special investigations” resource 
that can support all other enforcement services (e.g. Trading Standards (door-
step crime, anti-counterfeiting, etc.) and LASBU (where evidence of ASB is often 
hard to obtain). However, in view of the fact that flytipping and other enviro-
crime will inevitably remain their primary focus, it was logical for this service to 
be incorporated into the City Warden Service.  
 
Whilst an extended remit for City Wardens, with the service operating within a 
more joined-up enforcement framework, has many advantages, it has to be 
recognised that the level of resourcing (i.e. the number of wardens) will be a 
critical factor; the more resources that can be re-directed into the City Warden 
service, the more the service is likely to be able to deliver. 
 
The existing base budget funding provided for a Manager, 2 Senior Wardens 
and 9 City Wardens. As a consequence of the review, funding for additional 
wardens has been secured as follows: 

One Warden funded from the Noise/Licensing budget transfer 
Two Wardens funded from Waste Management budgets 
One Warden from the transfer from AEH of rubbish on private land work 
Two Wardens funded from highways licensing income  

 
This provides an increased budget for the City Warden service, sufficient to 
provide a Manager, 2 Senior Wardens and 15 City Wardens. Bearing in mind 
the enhanced role and significant additional workloads proposed, it will be 
challenging for the service to deliver all of these expectations with a team of 
this size; three additional posts over-and-above this would probably better 
enable the service to meet the anticipated workloads and service demands. 



 

6 
 

However, in view of the financial pressure facing the City Council it is felt 
prudent not to further increase the size of the service at present, or at least until 
the impact of these service changes has been assessed. Resourcing levels will 
be monitored carefully by senior managers, reviewing the demarcation lines 
between City Wardens and specialist enforcement teams, and adjusting the 
respective levels of resourcing where necessary. 
 
Consideration is also being given to establishing an Education Officer post, 
funded from FPN income. This would recognise the fact this type of work 
requires a high level of communication skills and would free-up more City 
Warden time for enforcement duties. 
 
 

Patrolling Services: Parking Enforcement 

 
The parking enforcement service was brought in-house on 1st February 2013. 
One of the main reasons for this decision was to enable the service to be 
integrated more with other council enforcement services and the council’s City 
Warden service in particular  
 
Prior to this transfer, it had already been decided that the parking enforcement 
service would to deal with littering and dog fouling problems as encountered in 
the course of their patrols, issuing Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) and delivering 
the increased income agreed in the last budget strategy (£25K in 2013/14, rising 
to £50K in 2014/15). This should significantly increase the level of litter and dog 
fouling enforcement undertaken, reducing the need for City Wardens to 
undertake routine litter patrols in areas patrolled by the parking enforcement 
service. However, many areas of the city, including littering hot-spots such as 
the pedestrianized areas of the city centre, are not subject to parking controls 
and hence would not be covered by their patrols. 
 
It was also decided to transfer the Parking & Permit Team (effectively the 
parking enforcement back-office team) to the Environmental & Enforcement 
Services Division, so as to allow for much closer working relationships between 
the on-street and back office teams.  
 
In the short-term (i.e. for the first 6-9months after the transfer of these teams), 
the immediate priority is to manage the transition of these services to the 
Division and ensure good working arrangements between the two services, 
whilst during the same period, the City Warden service adjusts to its new, 
expanded remit and working arrangements, and both services develop an 
understanding of their respective roles and responsibilities. 
 
Notwithstanding this integration, it is felt necessary to review the existing job 
descriptions of those employees that transferred under TUPE from Vinci Park 
Services. The current JDs were determined by the needs of the contract and do 
not allow for the flexibility now required.  In addition, recent changes in the 
operational approach have highlighted the need for additional Civil 
Enforcement Officers to ensure the correct level of service delivery.  The City 



 

7 
 

Council is keen to avoid operating a two-tier workforce and a common job 
description therefore becomes a necessity.  
 
In the longer term, the two services could be merged and/or jointly managed 
within area-based teams, with staff working in a two-tier structure, with Parking 
Enforcement Officers dealing with relatively straightforward street enforcement 
matters (i.e. parking enforcement and FPNs for littering & dog fouling), with City 
Wardens dealing with more complex enforcement work and acting as the link 
to local communities. Alternatively, they could work as two stand-alone 
patrolling services that work in close liaison with each other. It is proposed that 
a review of options in this respect is undertaken in late 2013 or early 2014. 
 

 
Specialist Teams 

 
The proposals recognise the need for specialist teams to undertake specialist, 
often technically complex, regulatory and enforcement work, each led by a 
team manager who is effectively the Council’s lead expert in that particular 
discipline. These comprise: 
 

• Food Safety Team 
• Health & Safety Team 
• Trading Standards Team 
• Business Support Team (a newly formed team) 
• Building Regulations Team 
• Building Safety & Protection Team 
• Private Sector Housing Team 
• Pest Control & Dog Warden Team 
• Two Licensing Teams 
• Vehicle Testing Station Team 
• Pollution Control Team 
• Anti-Social Behaviour Team 
• Noise Control Team 
• Community Safety Team 

 
Some of the above teams have had their remit & responsibilities changed as a 
result of the review and the level of resourcing within teams will be managed 
more flexibly in the future, so as to be more responsive to changing service 
demands. 
 
All of these regulatory and enforcement teams will be managed jointly by a 
senior (Head of Service) management team, so as help ensure better joined-up 
working within a single over-arching regulatory & enforcement service. 
 

 



This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	5 COMMUNITY SERVICES CHARGING SCHEME
	6 CUSTOMER SERVICES CENTRE RELOCATION
	7 CITY WARDEN SERVICE

